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Furthertoiyour correspondence tothe Gommanding Officer "K" Division, dated 2002 SEP 11, wherein
a formal request was made to conduct an extemal review related to the above noted matter.

The purpose of the external review is to allow the RCM Police to prepare for current and future civil
{itigation(s) in.this matter, or any other statement of claims that may arise.

The external réview team from “K” Division consisted of the following two members:

a)  0.1700 inspector R.J. (Bob) WILLIAMS

OIC Major Crimes North

b) 32959 S/Sgt. K:W:i(Kevir) SIMMILL

‘Ops Support:NCO:-Major Crimes North

1. MAN' DATE

The mandate was developedfrom.the correspondence received to assist Counsel for the Department
of Justice in defending civil action brought about by Karin JOESBURY in relation to the death of her
daughter Andrea JOESBURY (aka) as Angela JOESBURY. This mandate would also include any
further-anticipated civil action(s) by the family members of other missing women.

The objectives of the review team was to provide a response to the following allegations as set out
in the JOESBURY Statement of Claim as per Appendix “A".
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a) That the RCMP failed to properly investigate information from various sources received
between 1983-and 2002, which indicated that the land located at 953 Dominion Street in Port
Coquitlam, B.C. and that Robert William PICKTON was involved in the disappearances:

b)  Thatthe'RCMP having identified the existence of a possible serial killer, failed to putin place
proper.or adequate investigative resources in order to enable a meaningful and-effective
investigation; -and

c)  Thatthe RQMP failed to:share information with and communicate with other police forces and
officers that would have assisted in detecting Robert PICKTON's activities.

in'order to defend the-civil claims against the REMP, Department of Justice (DOJ) Counsel willrequire
an-indepth review pertalnlng to the following facts relative to

Robert William PICKTON
(DOB: 1949 OCT 26)
FPS: 895072D

on iy -other RCMP investigations or probable suspects. The latter could draw additional attention
elevantto'the case(s) of any reported missing women, particularly in the Lower Mainland area

fitish: Columbia.

“16Mof Septemiber, 2002, the review team arrived at and worked out of the: Surrey Satéllite
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* 2. HISTORICAL BACKGROUND

The City of Vancouver, B.C., in particular the downtown east:side, was experiencing comp|a|nts that
-a number-of women (sex trade workers, hereinafter referred to as S1Ws) were reported missing.
PO for the most part was the agency of jurisdiction due to the fact the STW's primarily frequented-
the downtown east side where it is known that many live a risky lifestyle which is.often dependerit
upon':dmg_.naddlctionlprostltutlon These STW's in their daily habits are quite often prone to violence,
ht-in:nature, and attract the criminal element specifically sexual predators.

e

jority of the mnssmg STWs were reported tothe VPD. Assmall.number ofthe
ff CMP ¢ tachments but they pnmanly esnded |n <and

revnews specuﬁc to:Robert Wlllam PICKTON ﬂle revnews speclf cito: persons
Ws) toRCMPjurisdictions and obtaining refevant documentation. This will assist
in oping a-complete understanding and-background preparation both for the reviewers and any
coutisel-for the ‘Departrient of Justice to defend statements of claim against the Force.
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3. INTERVIEW OF INSP. J.D. HENDERSON
OIC LOWER MAINLAND DISTRICT HOMICIDE UNIT

Insp. HENDERSON, who was recently commissioned, was formerly the NCO |/C "E" Division Unsolved
Homicide Wnit: To capsulize his interview he indicated that late in 1996 or the early part of 1897, he
would:havefirstbeen'made aware: -ofthefact that the VPB had several STWsiteported missinginthe
Vancouverhubarea, commonly referred to.asthe eastside. (Insp. HENDERSON!s notebooksrelative.
to exact dates and in particular to this time frame were unavailable as his notebooks are currently tied
up in court with the Air India proceedings.) Insp. HENDERSON relayed that he received a request
from Sgt. Jerémy FIELD of the VPD. Sgt. FIELD was looking for advice on how to.coordinate a
response from RCMP Detachments in "E” Division with regard to any Detachments that may have
similar missing person complaints of STW's that may be missing from RCMP jurisdictions or perhaps
rmis§ing STWis fromrespective detachments purporting to be residing/missing from the downtown-east
“side of Vancouver.

HENDERSON sent out an electronic transmission to all Detachments in "E” Division concerning the
request and to supply any similar cases direct to Sgt. FIELD of VPD. Insp. HENDERSON to his
fecollection:believas that at that ime-there was between 23 and 27 reported missing STW's from the
.downtown-east side. Insp. HENDERSON feels that Sgt. FIELD did receive a number of responses

to'that request.

_lnsp HENDERSON:and now A/Commr. Gary BASS, who in. rhe Ierter partof 1997 was_then he

flc:_

d cte .at‘the VPD asto: what steps they (VPD) were taklng in regard to the. lnvestlgatron
sing sex trdde workéfs. The VPD. :gave an overview of the investigation and’Insp.
?HENIERSON-":beIIeVes the number of missing STW's. was around 27 at that tithe. It was his
recollection that VPD were making eniquiries with regard to' determining-if these STW's were- actually
missing or if they were at other locales as apparently one or two had relocated elsewhere t6 change
their lifestyle. A discussion ensued which centered around the VPD and the Attorney General with
respect to posting a reward to help elicit information with regard to the missing women (STW's).

Theoffer for.assistance fromthe RCMP was made, however, no formal request was forthcoming from
VPD'or Attormey Genéral DOSANJH to then Supt. BASS and/or S/Sgt. HENDERSON.: Sgt. Jeremy
FIELD of VPD did make atequest to $/Sgt. HENDERSON during 1997 to.conduct a file review of their
(VPD) investigationinto the missing STW's to determine what other avenues that VPD could pursue.

S/Sgt. HENDERSON did in-fact attend VPD Headquarters to examine the file(s) to determine what

3 resources would:be necess: I ever, | the VPD files were not ready for the review-and required:

* *fuither: maintenance. | sf ' ) contaét his' office:for final

- arrangements-ohce thefiles y: o‘revrew ‘Rowever, Sgt. FIELB never"»f liowed: LR OR this initial
request. S/Sgt. HENDERSON became aware of a case from general office conversation which -
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invoived Robert “Willie” PICKTON and a sex trade worker at his house. There was a fierce altercation
with severe injuries to both parties which could have been fatal. This will be referred to later as the
—-natter which is subject to Coquitiam Detachment file 97CQ10797.

It has been deterrnined that S/Sgt. HENDERSON did attend a meeting at Coquitlam Detachment in
August of 1999. This meeting was attended by a cross section of personnel and investigators from
Coquitlam-Detachment, Vancouver Police Department, “E” Division Serious Crime Unit, "E” Division
Unsolved Homicide Unit. The purpose of this meeting was to provide an overview of the ongoing

investigation relative to Robert William PICKTON's activities surrounding the information obtained in
reference to

Lynn Anne ELLINGSEN
Coquntlam Detachment
File: -98C Q33017

The meetifg.identified:the; need to.forman investigative team witht ‘accompanying strategies. S/Sgt.
HENDERSON along with:S/Sgt.-RINN committed-a total of three resources, two from the Unsolved
Unit and one from the Serious Crime Wnit.

As the Acting Officer in Charge of "E" Division Major Crime Section, S/Sgt. HENDERSON met in late
2000 with representatives of the VPD to discuss the continuing missing STW's and the added:media
publicity. The number of missing STW's was-estimated to be around thirty-three. As a result of this
meeting the VPD were infermed that the RCMP would enter into a joint partnership to review the
situation to determine a course of action.

S/Sgt:- HENDERSON :assigned then S/Sgt. Don ADAM, “E” Division Major Crimes Special Pro;ect
NECO, to develop aplan of attack on'the difficult situation surrounding the missing STW's (i.e. no crime
sceries, gaps’ whenthe.STW's were actually reported missing, no witnesses, incomplete profiles on
the' mlssmg women, no forensic evidence) all of which posed a unique problem.

S/Sgt. HENDERSON further related the potential of two other serial killers that were connected to
other murder crime scenes-and confirmed by forensic evidence. One of the avenues.explained by
SISgt. HENDERSON would be:to examine known suspects, obtain their DNA and eliminate them as
sérial killer.suspects. This would of course not necessarily mean that whoever was responsible, may
not:be responisible for the disappearance or suspected foul-play of the missing STW's.

‘SISgt. ADAMIn his initial-reviewing stages proposed a multi-pronged attack which was supported in
principle by senior management of both “E" Division and the Vancouver Police Department. Funding
and resources were made available as requested and as S/Sgt. ADAM's global vision expanded, so
did resourcing and financial obligations to which there was never an issue.

As the review progressed it became apparent that the STW's were still going missing and highlighted
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the need for additional resources to concentrate their efforts on the streets due to the lack of any crime
scene(s). Two major teams consisting of approximately twenty resources from the RCMP and
Vancouver Police Department blitzed the downtown east side of Vancouver conducting investigations
heightening the awareness of the missing STW's.

Itis-clearfrom S/Sgt, HENDERSON's interview that on his direction and under his guidance because
of his:concem, he initiated a review team which ended up becoming a Task Force and eventually
culminated in the arrest of Robert William PICKTON. S/Sgt. HENDERSON relates that there was an
excellent relationship- with .all municipal departments in the Lower Mainland District (hereinafter
referred to-as LMB)-and in fact commented the refationship with the Vancouver Police Department
was at best "outstanding”.

For complete details of Insp. HENDERSON's interview, please refer to his attached statement as per
Appendix "B”.

4. |NTERVIEW OF SISGT DON ADAM

in November 2000, S/Sgt. ADAM was tasked by then S/Sgt. Doug HENDERSON to examine the VPD

investigation(s) of the 27 missing- ‘STW's. His mandate was primarily to determine if there was any
-assistance:that could: be: .offered.to VPD by the RCMP on new investigative tactics or strateg|es that
: could b&’ |mp1emented

SISgt ADAM relayed 1o the- revnew team a number of investigational problems which were initially
identified as-being:

a) A lack of recovered bodies eliminated forensic potential.

b)  Veiy loose time frames surrounding disappearances limited the ability to investigate.
i) Large suspect pool.

d) Inadequate resources to conduct an exhaustive research as required.

His investigational:strategy was developed through a four phase appreach by:
a) Build up crime. scene DNA banks:
b) Review and ‘prioritize suspects.
c) Obtain DNA from suspects.
d) Upon obtammg a DNA hit, conﬁrmlehmmate involvement with-missing STW's.
e -'By the fall of 2001 the revnewers (bothRCMP and VPD members) under the-direction-of S/Sgt. ADAM

had reviewed thousands of-cases in relation to the operational plans he had authored: ‘During the
review, potential areas of concern were identified, namely the responsibility of agencies to take
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ownership of any new missing personfiles. Uitimately a timely investigation was not being considered
and with the vast amount of material being researched by the review team they would not-be in a
position to coordinate any new incoming investigations.

Another area of concern expressed by S/Sgt. ADAM was the fact that no members of the VPD who
were familiar with and working on Project AMELIA (VPD Task Force on missing women) were willing
to be part of the new Task Force. Subsequently, the review team had to start from “ground zero".
This included the VPD computer system (SIUSS) which contained approximately 2 years of work by
VPDB investigators.

Theestablishment of the review team increased its resources- throughout the summer of 2001 and as
well it appeared there; was no decline in the number of missing STW's, and in fact an additional
eighteen had been teported as missing.

On'2001 AUG:29, S/Sgt. ADAM presented a briefing report to senior management of the RCMP and
Vancouver Police Departrnent. In his presentation, he-provided-a brief history as well as his four
phase mvestlgatlonal strategy surrounding Project EVENHANBED. A number of recommendations
were.made atithis briefing which included the need for additional resources and appropriate funding.

A: capy of this management review report is the subject of Appendix “C”,

On.2001 DEC 02, S/Sgt. ADAM submitted an operational-plan for an additional twelve resources to
become :active ‘and work in the downtown east side of Vancouver. It was felt through intelligence
probes-and investigations thatin all likelihood a serial killer was continuing to operate in the dewntown
east side. By February 2002, it is important to note that according to S/Sgt. ADAM, Robert William
PICKTON's name (aka “Willie") had not surfaced on any of the material reviewed up to that point. The
team, however, was-aware of PICKTON's activities in 1997 and 1999 respectively in Coqurtlam B.C.
and:that.police agencies: ‘had looked at him as a possible suspect-on one of the missing STW's. The
team.was also-aware that PICKTON's DNA-hatsbeen eliminated as the 1995 serialkiller operating in
the southwest: REMP District which encompassed Mission.and Agassiz, B.C. The 1995killings are
referred to-as:

a) Tammy Lee PIPE - Agassiz File #95-2942
b) Ttac:Fadola OLAJIDE - Agassiz File #95-2668
¢) Victoria Lynn YOUNKER - Mission File #95-15144

The forensic evidence and modus operandi reveal that the three murders were in fact committed by
the same individual ahd not yét identified. Refer to a brief overview of these murder victims as
attached per Appendix “D”.

S/Sgt. ADAM advised that in relation to viable suspects in a project like this there would have been
in the:neighborhood of 60 priority one suspects which included Rebert William PICKTON. Additionally
there was a-pool of hundreds of suspects referred to as priority three suspects only because they had
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not been thoroughly investigated to elevate them to a priority one. Of this pool of suspects, some
undoubtedly would receive greater attention perhaps to a prierity one once Project EVENHANDED
continued to progress.

S/Sgt. ADAM was asked if there were any difficulties with communications, sharing of infermation, or
any:aspects. surroundmg the working relationship with VPD. He related the oooperatlon was excéllent
and-a.free flow of‘investigative data between departments was of no major concern. In order-to

omplétely- .understand the' magpitude of this project throughout its infancy stages up to the arrest of
Robert William PICKTON, the "dally log” attached as per Appendix “E” will provide an indepth
overview of Project EVENHANDED and the formation of the Missing Women's Task Force. SISgL
ADAM's statemerit is alsé attachéd as per Appendix “F”.

. INTERVIEW OF A/ICOMMR. GARY BASS
OIC CRIMINAL OPERATIONS “E” DIVISION

A/Commr. BASS was interviewed by phone and a brief summary of this interview will be provided
relative to notes:made by the review'team. A/ICommr. BASS was the OIC Serious Crimes “E® Division
from 1992 to 1994. In 1994 he becamé the OIC Major Crimes.“E” Division until his transfer.to Division
Headquarters in July of 2000.

In his;capacity asithe-OIC Major Crimes: he first became aware. of the problem of mlssmg s.from.
Y 2 9 -

- ' btisfed by hls subofdmates«and had various seussrons wntﬁ other munlcipél pollce
-departments concermng the public pressufe:the VPD was expenencmg

Supt. BASS and S/Sgt. Doug HENDERSON attended a scheduled meeting in 1997 with the then
Attorney General, Ujjal DOSANJH. Supt. BASS feels this meeting was organized.and attended by
a senior representative of the VPD. The agenda of this meeting related to the public pressure of the
‘missing STW's and the potential to post a substantial reward for information that could lead police to
the person(s) responsible-for the disappearances of the mlssmg women. A/Commr. BASS indicated
that the RCMP representatives at this meeting had a very minor role with little or no involvement. He
believes that no formal request was made for assistance at this meeting from either the Attorney
General or the VPD.

In hisposition as:the OIC Major Crimes he recalls routinely briefing senior management of "E" Division
informed as to the status of the missing STW's and any RCMP involvemient by his subordinates.
During his tenure ds the OIC-Mgjor Crimes “E* Division, he was activein-the formation of the "E"
Division Unsolved Homlclde Unit' primarily because of the number of outstanding “homicide
investigations and the substantial number of missing people where foul play was suspected.

A/Commr. BASS believes resourcing issues in LMD law enforcement agencies has always been-a
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concern particularly with the VPD who felt they were under resourced. Financial restraints were not
an issue relative to the RCMP. There was a good working relationship between the RCMP and VPD
and in his opinion the RCMP was very proactive in setting up a Joint Task Force to examire and
investigate the missing STW's. A/Commr. BASS made it very clear that there was more than one
setial killer operating in'the LMD:based on his knowledge of the high profile unsolved murders that
have occurred in RCMP jurisdictions.

AiCommr. BASS was made aware of the Lynn ELLINGSEN file, which relates to Robert Wiliiam
PICKT@N who surfaced in Coquitlam and recalls being briefed at some point in time by the then OIC
‘Operétions CoquitlamDetachment, Insp. Earl MOULTON. Itwas under his direction along with senior
management of the VPD to increase the resources of S/Sgt. ADAM's review team. This was based
on'the proposalreferreditoin-Appendix C which was presented before the participants at this meeting.

This is-primarily the first time that the name Robert William PICKTON (DOB: 1949-10-26) of 953
Dominion Street, Port Coquitiam, B.C. was brought to the attention of the RCM Police.

_was a sextrade worker who PICKTON picked up in downtown Vancouver, B.C.
and- took back ‘to_his residence in Port Coguitlam, B.C. PICKTON engaged in consensual-

‘well.-as other: areas ef herbody. | was ‘able to escape | from PIC KTON S: traller but’ Was

confroniea‘ outside tkie {railer :again by PICKTON where she received another stab y
‘abdomen. PICKTON then apparently passed out from his bloodletting .at which time
walked to a roadway and summoned help from a passing motorist.

Both PICKTON and B received medical treatment. During the course of PICKTON's
medical treatmerit, the RCMP seized a blood soaked gauze from the garbage at the hospital. The
‘blood from the gauze and-the seized used condom contents from PICKTON's trailer were-compared
and matched to'RobertWilliam PICKTON. The DNA profile was eventually entered into the local DNA
Data Bank of British Columbia. PICKTON was charged with numerous Criminal Code offences;
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however,_efused to cooperate with both the police and the Crown which eventually left
no alternative for the Crown Prosecutor in this case but to enter a “stay of proceedings” on all charges
against Robert William PICKTON.

From our:review, itis-interesting to.note that at the time of these offences Robert William PICKTON
had:fio criminalirecord.

The circtimstances of this; pamcutar ‘event:.were entered into Violent Crime Linkage Analysis System
(VICLAS) oh-97:04-19, which is -a national data bank. In addition, a CPIC (Canadian Policé
Information Centre) message dated'97-03-29 was disseminated to all LMD detachments ofthe RCMP
and-municipal police forces. Itwas addressed tothe specific attention of Sexual Assault Co-ordinator,
Plainclothes.Units, as well as Sgt. FIELD of the Vancouver P.D. Se Squad. This
message autlined the offences committed by PICKTON in relation toMo make them
aware he was a person of interest in violence towards STW's. Refer to attached message as
contained:in Appendix “G”.

The entire investigation has been copied onto a compact disc which we have attached for easy
reference on the complete file details as per Appendix “"H”.

7. 98CQ:=330147

In. August. of 1998, VPD Detective Lori SHENHER called Cpl. Mike CONNOR of the Coquitlam
Detachrnent Serious: Crime Wnit. Det. SHENHER had received information from a tipster in regard
to.one-of theirmissing séx trade worker files. During the course ofthe VPD- investigation at least'two
tips.wereeceived intelation toa Port Coquitlam resident, Robert Wiliam PICKTON. ‘The information
surrounded the disappearance of a sex trade worker named Sarah DEVRIES, and the-possibility that
PICKTON right be responsible for her death and other missing STW's.

Information from the tipster alse provided additional data that PICKTON utilized the services of
prostitutes-on a regular basis. A recent female visitor to his trailer alleged she noticed 10 purses,
itifica -clothing. Apparently, M. PICKTON could easily. dispose of bodiés by putting

ugh-agrinder which then could be fedto'his hogs. The tipster's information indicated “Willie”
sen:iin é'stig'a't'éa for cuttifig the throat of a prostitute '

Det. SHENHER meéts with Cpl. CONNGR, discusses PICKTON, and as a result he {PICKTON).is
" placed-on'GPIC in the-observation category in an attermipt to' identify his travels, associates, vehicles,
etc. VPD identified the source of the information which was being received “second hand” from a.
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female by the-name of Lee. Lee was later identified as Lisa Hazel YELDS (DOB: The
source of the information also indicated PICKTON had conversations with YELDS concerning threats
against nd the use of syringes to bring harm upon her.

The information was being provided by Vancouver P.D. to Cpl. CONNOR of the Serious Crime Unit
in Coquitlam Detachment who embarked on what would become a large scale investigation. Cpl.
CONNOR took the information very seriously and the ensuing investigation is best outlined in his
detailed statement, activity log, and affidavit which is currently being utilized in the Project
EVENHANDED investigation.

It is the review.team’s opinion that this particular investigation surrounding the details leading up to
theidentifi eatlon of Lyrin ELLINGSEN and herinvolvement with-Robert William PICKTON are the focal
point of this review.

8. INTERVIEWOF REG. #32906 SGT. MIKE CONNOR
NEO I/C SERIOUS CRIME-UNIT
COQUITLAM:DEFACHMENT

in March of 1997, thenh Cpl. Mike CONNOR investigated the complalint of the stabbing incident of

by Robert William PICKTON. As previously indicated PICKTON was charged
with-a number of criminal offences which were subsequently stayed by the Crown. This was Cpl.
CONNOR's first dealing with Robert William PICKTON. Itis also believed that this was primarily the
first-serious criminal offence that Robert William PICKTON was charged with and came to the
attention ef the RCM Police.

From this statement and as previously outlined, Cpl. CONNOR met with VPD Detective Lor
SHENHER in August of 1898. DBuring the course of the investigation Vancouver P.D. identified the
source of the: tipster information relative to PIEKTON. The source has now been publicly identified

.. a8 (FNU)'HISC@CKS (phonetic). Det. SHENHER and Cpl. CONNOR interviewed HISCOCKS and -
determmed the source.of the information was coming to HISCOCKS second hand from Lisa YELDS,
"hls former foster sister. ;T

Due to the fact that the option of the UCO was shelved other investigative strategies were employed
by the RCMP in Coquitlam in conjunction with the Vancouver Police Department, as follows:

a) Aerial photographs of the PICKTON farm by Air Services
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b) Blitz of the downtown east side of Vancouver interviewing STW's and sharing pictures
of Robert William PICKTON, with little success

c) Meetings were held with New Westminster P.D., Vancouver P.D., Surrey, Burnaby,
Unsolved Homicide: Unit, to make them aware of Robert William PICKT ON and his
suspected: aCtMtleS

d) Special “O" suiveillance

e)  DNAfromPICKTONtothe Crime Detection Laboratory [ <) tobe reviewed
against similar outstanding offences

Other homicide investigations and priorities of the Serious Crime Unit at Coquitiam were being
investigated during the time period when PICKTON was considered a person of interest.

In July of 1999 the Vancouver Police Department identified another source of unknown reliability by
the name of Ross Matthew CALDWELL. CALDWELL supplied second hand information that
PICKTON miay be responsible for the disappearance of STW's from the downtown east side of
Vancouv i B C. Itwas determ""‘ dthat- CALDWELL was being supplied his information concerning
Vi LINGSEN.: Apparently ELLINGSENhad travelled tothe eastside
of Vancouver w:th PICKTON'for"'the purpose of assisting*him to pick up a STW.

The information was that PICKTON, in-company with ELLINGSEN, did in fact bring a- STW back to
his trailer in‘Port Coqu:tlam B.C. ‘PICKTON apparently wentinto the bedroom and had some seért of
a sex-act with-this STW. ELLINGSEN heard yelling-and screaming from the bedroom and she told
the STW to:be quiet. ELLINGSEN stated things quiéted down-and then she‘observed a native girl
beingiled or-escorted by PICKTON out of the trailer. ELLINGSEN apparently related to'CALDWELL
“that-she went outside of the trailer into an adjacent barn, where she saw the same female hanging
from arafter, and PIGKTON "skinning” her. She made the commentto CALDWELL, somethingto the
effect that:she didn't know human fat was yellow.

. Cpl-CONNOR:felt after.being privileged to this information:that Robert William PICKTON should be
,certamly iivestigated-for this single incident and at the very least look at him for the missing STW's
otit of Vancouver, B.C.

sult of this information Insp. MOULTON, the Operations Officer at Coquitlam Det was
of the source-information.. It was then suggestéd that a task force should be cons:dered'
0 mvestsgate

A a e

A joint management team consisting of investigating members from Vancouver P.D., Coquitlam
Serious Crimes, “E* Division Serious Crime Unit and the Unsolved Homicide Unit met for the purpose
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of formmg an investigative body to substantiate the information being supplied by CALDWELL in
reference to ELLINGSEN/PICKTON. It was agreed that 24 hour surveillance be-initiated on Robert
William PICKTON. Cpl. CONNOR also related that periodic surveillance had been conducted over
the previous year when Special "O" was available. The surveillance duties were split between the
RCMP Special "O" Section and the Vancouver Police Department Strike Force Unit. Atthe time Cpl.
CONNOR was dealing with dated and second hand information and the unknown identity of a possible
victim,

A supplemented investigative team which consisted of members from Coquitlam Specialized Support
Unit, "E" Division Serious-Crime and Unsolved Unit as well as the Vancouver Police Department met
and discussed investigative strategies, primarily to obtain first hand information from Lynn
ELLlNGSEN Considerations were given to obtaining a Part VI Authorization, Warrant(s) for video
cameras; arid the possibillty of formulating the proper grounds for a Warrant to Search.

The pivotal-point.of Cpl. CONNOR’s investigation rested with substantiating the alleged information
whlch was Supplled to CALDWELL from ELLlNGSEN In: addmon the lnvestlgatlve team felt it was
CALBWELL was mtervnewed on 99 AUG .05 by Dets. LEPlNE and CHERNOFF of the Vancouver
Police Department. The interview quickly deteriorated and it was felt that CALDWELL was somewhat
underthe influence of an unknown substance, possibly herain. He was unable to provide a reliable
statement at this time and subsequently plans were made to re-interview him at a later date.

Another avenue to confirm the information relative to PICKTON was to conduct a passive interview
ofLynn ELLINGSEN and confront her with the information that she supposedly witnessed and relayed
to Ress CALDWELL. ELLINGSEN was arrested on an outstanding warrant by Detective
BALLANTYNE ofthe Vancouver Police Department and Cpl. Frank HENLEY ofthe RCMP “E” Division
Unsolved Homicide Unit. She.was taken to the Whalley Sub Office in Surrey, B.C. Of interest, prior
to thesinterview of ELLINGSEN, a Leah BEST, anather potential witness came forward providing yet
additional information from ELLINGSEN that was fairly consistent with the details supplied by
CALBWELL.

During the aforementioned interview of Lynn ELLINGSEN, she denied making any of those statements
or witnessing any of the events described to CALDWELL and BEST. Refer to'the interview of Lynn
ELLINGSEN dated 99 AUG 10 as per attached Appendix “I1”. The follow-up of this interview
surrounded several discussions concerning her mental well-being and her drug related addictions
which perhaps hindered any validity to what she supposedly disclosed to CALDWELL and BEST.

There were discussions initiated on conducting a profile on Lynn ELLINGSEN with an eventuality of
conducting an undercover operation (UCQ) on her. The cansensus of the investigative team felt that
this avenue of investigation was not viable and that she was unreliable and her mental stability was
questionable.
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As the primary investigator and file co-ordinator Cpl. CONNOR, as a result of prior dealings with
PICKTON, felt strongly that they were on to something, however continuous surveillance of PICKTON
showed that he was not doing-anything of concern. There was nothing to substantiate or corroborate
that-he-in fact was "hugﬂng down women” while he was under surveillance. The surveillance
.endeavouron PICKTON p!aced}:a strain.on available resources from all contributing departments and
specialized sections. There was:some.indication atthis time from an internal employee of the City of
Coquitiam that Rebert William: PICKTON was aware that the RCMP were interested:in his activities
and conducting surveillance upon him.

Phys]cal surveillance was terminated as a result of this information. Video camera surveillance on the
PICKTON farm property was considered and discussed with Regional Crown Counsel and Special“I”
techinicians. However, this option, because of logistical purpeses, was not utilized. Cpl. CONNQGR
shared his concern-with uniform detachment personnel to be vigilant and observant around the
PICKTON residence - while on their patrols.

In the latter part of August 1999, Cpl. CONNOR is promoted to Sgt. and is moved to the watch within
Coquntlam Detachmentand subsequently the conduct of the file was transferred to Cst. Ruth YURKIW
(Ret). She was a'member of the Coquitlam Serious Crime Unit at the time.

Cpl. CONNOR-camé:telearnithat a decision had been reached torre-interview Lynn ELLINGSEN with
the sole lntentlon of:offerifig;her aspolygraph examinationtodetermine if infact she: was tiuthfil. St
consented lmtlally and on.the: day of the polygraph appointiment declined onthe advice of herzlawyer

Cpl. .CONNOR advised that many discussions were had with the investigative team in relation to
‘obtdifiing a search wamant for the. PICKTON property. Based on the fact that there were two
instarices of dated information, two:instances of second hand information, and noidentified victimor
person that had disappeared from Vancouver's east end during the period of March or April 1899,
there were insufficient grounds to obtain a search warrant.

The grounds for belief are outlined in the attached Appendix “J”. You will note that these grounds
were a work in progress by Cpl. CONNOR and now form part of the Project EVENHANDED
investigation as an affidavit Exhibit "C” prepared by Sgt. Mike CONNOR.

Sgt. CONNOR, still maintaining an interest in the file, had occasion to monitor the interview of Robert
William PICKTON and Gina HOUSTON by Csts. YURKIW and CATER in January of 2000. Robert
PICKTON declined to be interviewed without his associate Gina HOUSTON being present:in the

room. It was obvious.and:in the opinion of Sgt. CONNOR that PICKTON was lying:duririg
nd that HOU STON. continually intefrupted the mtervuewer(s) Refer to-the transcribed
‘Robert William PICKT®N dated. 2000 JAN 19 as "Appendix “K”.

In March 2001 Sgt. CONNOR returned to become the NCO i/c of the Major Crime Unit. This
particular investigation remained a high priority file with Cst. YURKIW retaining the overall
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responsibility of the file. In the summer of 2001, Cst. YURKIW retired from the Force with the file now
transferring again to Cst. Kim SHERSTONE of the Coguitlam Major Crime Unit.

While working sporadically on this file, numerous other high priority investigations including a rash of
homicides in Coquitlam Detachment jurisdiction took precedence right up until the beginning of
February 2002. A detailed time line has been prepared which begins in March of 1987 incorporating
the other pressures and priorities Coquitlam Detachment was experiencing. In this time line the
bolded text refers to the investigations relating to Robert William PICKTON. Refer to the time line
attdched as Appendix “L”.

Sgt. CONNOR dealt directly with senior management at Coquitiam Detachment, in particular the

Operations Officer Inspector Earl MOULTON. Insp. MOULTON was very positive and supported the

+ - investigative: strategles Insp. . MOULTON did what he could with respect to human resources and
_ funding.

* It was the Coqunlam Detachinernit Street:Enforcement Unit:that received reliable information about
|Ilegal firearms:and subsedtieritly a search warrant was obtained to search the residerice of Robert
William PICKTON:in February 2002. For a detailed version of the events and completeinvestigation,
please refer to the following documents:

-a) Coritinuation Reports (1624's) outlining the ELLINGSEN/PICKTON file held by Coquitiam.Det.
File #98CQ33017. The majority of these reporis were compiled by Sgt. Mike CONNOR as
contained in Appendix "M”.

b)  Theinterview and transcribed statement of Sgt. Mike CONNOR as attached in Appendix “N".
c) Referto the compactdisc:previously mentioned in Appendix “H" re: ELLINGSEN Investigation.

{9 INTERVIE
OF THE “E"

‘OF REG. #31408 CPL. FRANK HENLEY (RET.)
DIVISION: UNSOLVED. HOMICIDE UNIT

In August 1999 Cpl. Frank HENLEY and Detective Bruce BALLANTYNE of the VPD, both assigned
to the "_E" Division. Unsolved Homicide Unit; were requested to assist Coquitlam Detachment.

. dnformation:was: that Coquutlam mvesugators thought they had identified a person responsible for a

. “murdeér, namely Willie PICKTON. Cpl. HENLEY and his partner were briefed by Cpl. Mike CONNOR
at Coquitiam Detachment:surrounding the information that was relayed to the police by a confidential
source of the VPD. Apparently this source had informatien that another person had witnessed a
woman's body hanging up in the pig barn and that Willie PICKTON was either skinning or about to
skin the body. Cpl. CONNOR then provided Cpl. HENLEY with an overview of thehﬁle
thatinvolved -Robert William PICKTON.
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Cpl. HENLEY monitored the interview between Detectives CHERNOFF and LEPINE with the source
Ross CALDWELL. It was Cpl. HENLEY's opinion that CALDWELL was “stoned” and felt he had
previous dealings with this source and that he may be unreliable and manipulative. The Vancouver
members were not desirous of letting Cpl. HENLEY and Det. BALLANTYNE interview their Source.

At a round table-discussion Cpl. HENLEY was tasked by Supt. Ric HALL, the -OIC of Coquitlam
Detachment, to-locate and interview the contributor of the information to:CALDWELL, namely Lynn
ELLINGSEN. Cpl. HENLEY was quite familiar with-ELLINGSEN and had previous dealings with her
as a source'in the past.

HENLEY and BALLANTYNE arrested Lynn ELLINGSEN on an unrelated warrant for Impaired Driving
andithe proceeded! tointerviewherat'Surrey Detachment. During the intefview ELLINGSEN deriied
. g8 qything about a girl being murdered at the pig farm. She does confirm fiving at Willie

PICKTON's frailer where there were always women coming and going. She noticed off and on that
there were wemen's clothes in the trailer. She also indicated that Ross CALDWELL was living in the
PICKTON residence and that she and CALDWELL were working for Willie PICKTON. There was a
general conversation and. ELLINGSEN admitted they were blackmailing Willie PICKTON, however,
it was never really determined what the reason was but likely connected to the drug trade. Cpl.
HENLEY éventually challenged her surrounding her seeing a girl's body being hung up in the barn.
Lynn’ELLINGSEN: balked:at the thought and: vehemently denied she ever saw anything like that. A
copy of this interview has béen previously referred to in Appendix “I".

Cpl: HENLEY approaches:ELLINGSEN again as:he isnottotally satisfied she is telling the truth. He
3 EN who again- denies the circumstances surrounding the weman: hanglng inthe
eiterates that Ross CALDWELL is not being truthful. Cpl. HENLEY proposes a-polygraph
examlnatlen fo'LynnELLINGSEN and she-agrees.to: undergo this test. Arrangements.were madebut
due ‘o the-polygraphist's schedule ELLINGSEN could not be tested until a number of days later.

Cpl. HENLEY, in consuitation with Sgt. Darryl POLLOCK, brought ELLINGSEN to Coquitlam
Detachment to have her interviewed by Cst. Ruth YURKIW and CALDWELL's handler Detective
LEPINE of the VPD. The interview did not go well and ELLINGSEN basically went ballistic and no
pertihent information was gleaned. Cpl. HENLEY replaced Det. LEPINE during the interview in an
attempt to. settle ELLINGSEN down. Although he managed to settle her down, he could not get
centrol of her emotions to a point where the interview would be fruitful. After the interview,

ELLINGSEN still maintained she would take the test. HENLEY, on the day of the test, was unable to
track her down and eventually she was located and refused to submit to this polygraph examihation
ontheadvice of herlawyer. Afterthis encounter ELLINGSEN seemed to sever ties with Cpl. HENLEY
and he-was surprised-that she avoided contact with him. HENLEY tried several times to track her.
down |eavmg messages, etc., but she never did get back to: him. Cpl. HENLEY has limited
mvolvement with'the file after ELL1NGSEN refused to take the polygraph

In March of 2001, Cpl. HENLEY still had an interest in the file and seemed somewhat disappointed
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in the progress.of the investigation. Just prior to Cst. YURKIW retiring from the Force she had a brief
conversation with Cpl. HENLEY and indicated that PICKTON was interviewed and his perception was
the investigation ended there. Cpl. HENLEY decided on his own initiative that he would go and speak
with Robert ‘William PICKTON at his fam. He did so, and relayed to Willie PICKTON what
CALDWELL and ELLINGSEN allegedly disclosed about him killing people and doing all sorts of
horrible things. He confronted PICKTON who basically denied any wrongdeing and said that
CALDWELL and ELLINGSEN had ripped him off and were using him. Cpl. HENLEY indicates this
was more.or’ {ess a-social visit with PICKTON, just to try and get a feel for his personality and attitude.
HENLEY made it very clear to PICKTON that he was a person of interest in the murders of several
prostitutes. Robert William PICKTON in his discussion with Cpl. HENLEY indicated that he had never
done anything to hurt anyone and his altercation with the other sex trade worker ([ D was
strictly one of self-defense. This candid interview of now Retired Cpl. Frank HENLEY is attached as
per Appendix “O”.

10. INTERVIEW OF REG #33484 SGT. DARRYL POLLOCK

-8gt.,POLLOCK, in the fall of 1998, became the NCO I/C of the Major Crime Unit at Coquitlam
Detachment.

He attended meetings in July and August of 1999 relative to the continuing investigation of Robert
W|I|am PICKTON/Lynn ELLINGSEN.

During the first part.of August 1999, Coquitlam Detachment was utilizing the RCMP Special “O"
Section for surveillance duties on Robert William PICKTON. The file(s) at that time relative to
PICKTON was transferred to Cst. Ruth YURKIW who assumed the responsibility of the case. Cpl.
CONNOR was transferred to the watch within Coquitlam Detachment.

Sgt. POLLOCK and Cst. YURKIW attended to the PICKTON farm on August 31®, 1899 to interview
Robert William PICKTON. PICKTON was not at his residence and a message was left to contact the
mvestlgators Later that evening PICKTON paged POLLOCK and POLLOCK called him back.
POLLOCK informed PICKTON that.the RCMP had heard ‘some things about him from a few people
and that they wanted to speak with him. PICKTON said he.thought it was a good idea-as things:had
gotten out of hand.

Se t. 2% 0738 hrs: POLLOCK receives. page from PICKTON. Couldn't meet today,
working and-alréady behind schedule to meet in the evehing.

Sept. 8”: Voice message from Willie PICKTON to POLLOCK. Call was received after
2100 frs. previous evening. PICKTON stating he was: ‘leaving by 0600 hrs. this date and
running double shifts. Wouldn't be in tili late and asked if we could bear with him a
couple of days. POLLOCK left a message later in the day for Willie PICKTON
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suggesting an evening interview.

Sept. 9% - 1640 hrs.: Voice mail from PICKTON requesting to attend his residence that
evening at 2100 hrs. POLLOCK then left PICKTON a message confirming 2100 hrs.
was alright, however, wished the interview to be conducted at the RCMP office in
Coquitlam, B.C. Asked to be paged by PICKTON.

Sept. 9% - 2050 hrs.: POLLOCK calls number that PICKTON eft for him and his brother
Dave PICKTON answers the phone. Dave stated, "You guys were supposedto be here
at 9:00 o'clock”. Willie was then put on the phone and Dave PICKTON was heard
yelling in‘the background, ifthey want to talk they can come out here.

POLLGCK explalned to Robert: PICKTON the reasons for attending the Detachment,
haimely to audio and. video the iriterview for his and our (RCMP) protection. The
conversations between Sgt. POLEOCK, Robert and Dave PICKTON deteriorated
primarily because of David PICKTON’s interference and abrasiveness indicating he
(Bave) ran the show. There was no interview conducted until January 19" of 2000.

Sgt: POLLOCK advises from his notes that between Sept. 8" of 1999 and November of 2000 he had
very fittle to' do with the PICKTON file. Sgt. POLLOCK felt there was never enough resources to
properly investigate all- ofthe high profile and older investigations occurring within the Coquitlam Det.
aréa, Sgt. POLLOCK provided anarray of examples of other current priority files that his unit would
have £ (o) mvestlgate

Itwasithe opinion of Sgt. POLLOCK thatthere was insufficient information compiled onRobert William
PICKTON based on. the investigation conducted to warrant a full scale operation. At the time,
-« PICKTON: was .considered:one of many suspects relative to:the missing STW's.

In‘hindsight, Sgt. POLLOCK in- his'interview feit there was little else that could have been done with
the.information they had at the time on Robert William PICKTON.

Thednterview of Sgt. Darryl POLLOCK is attached as per Appendix “P”.
11. INTERVIEW OF REG. 0.1694 CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT R.E. (EARL) MOULTON

DEPUTY CRIMINAL OPERATIONS OFFICER - CONTRACT
“E” DIVISION

C/Supt., MOULTON, then Inspector, went to Coquitlam Detachment in the capacity of the Operations
Officer in July 1996. He transferred to “E" Division HQ to his current position in June of 2000.

In 1896, 1nsp. MOULTON:personally dealt with the PICKTON's in respect to the Piggy's Palace issue.
This establishment was being developed on the Burns Road site in Port Coquitlam, B.C. as.a“booze

PREPARED FOR THE PURPOSE OF CURRENT AND ANTICIPATED CIVIL LITIGATION

Page 18 of 27

D:\Redacted\r_Williams' Report.pd



RCMP-004-000711
RCMP-004-000729

can”. Insp. MOULTON, as well as members of Coquitlam Detachment, dealt with David and Robert
PICKTON on a number of-occasions in-relation to liquor permits and violations. Eventually, an order
from the Liquor Board denied any further liquor permits associated to this address.

Insp. MOULTON felt that the 1997 stabbing incidents involving Robert William PICKTON and-'
_had been properly investigated.

During 1998/98 Insp. MOULTON became aware of the information that originated through
Crimestoppers that Robert “Willie” PICKTON may be invoived with the missing STW's from the
downtown east side of Vancouver. He was briefed, and the RCMP attempted through a variety of
means to corroborate that information. To further substantiate the information, the RCMP had to
establish and implement strategies that would support the grounds for an undercover operation,
search warrant(s), or a Part VI Application, and discussions with Crown Counsel, in relation to Robert
William:PICKTON or Lynn ELLINGSEN.

To his recollection, both:the-RCMP Special “O" Team and the Vancouver Police Department Strike
Force initiated surveillance on-Robert PICKTON for a period of weeks. Nothing of: 'significance from
the surveillance on PICKTON, altered the state of any information. He further stated Lynn
-ELLlNGSEN s cred|b|||ty lessened as the RCMP advanced their investigation-to substantiate the
alleged snghtlng she ‘shared with others.

Insp, MOULTON attended; at Jeast three meetings in-relation to this investigation with a variety of
RCMP.investigators, including representatives from the Vancouver Police Department.

Despite.a number of high profile investigations including other murders, Insp. MOULTON ensured that

. appropriate numbers.of resources were dedicated to the PICKTON investigation. In his recollection,
he was of the opinion that although investigators had little corroboration or were in possession of any
relevant evidence during the surveillance mode, they continued to pursue this avenue.

One-of-his concerns expressed was at what point or under what circumstances do you withdraw that
surveillance? Funding was never an issue and Insp. MOULTON was confident they could have
obtained further funding if necessary outside of the local parameters. Insp. MOULTON was satisfied
that every possible step was taken to verify Lynn ELLINGSEN's allegation to various sources.

Insp: MOUL’F.N confirmed he briefed senior managers, both: at "E" Divisien and Coquitlam
Detachment relative to the investigations at-hand.

Insp. MOULTON confirmed an amicable working relationship.and sharing of information with VPD.
He also related that VPD advised him of other known suspects of at least equal interest to that of
Robert William PICKTON.

In summation, C/Supt. Earl MOULTON now looking back on this case, commented *that given
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unlimited time, unlimited dollars, and unlimited people we perhaps would have liked to have

continuous twenty-four surveillance bu simply can't.”
The statement of Chief Superintendent MOULTON is attached as per Appendix “Q”.
12. INTERVIEW OF REG. #32669 S/SGT. BRADLEY ZALYS

PLAINCLOTHES COMMANDER
COQUITLAM DETACHMENT

In.Noverfiberof 1999:8/Sgt. ZALYS became the Plainclothes Commander of Coquitiam Detachment
which includes the direct supervision of the Serious/Major Crifne Unit. S/Sgt. ZALYS related thathe
became. mor mvolved atthattime withithe PICKTGNIELLINGSEN investigation, however, as: awatch
commander.in- Cequutlam ing the summer of 1999 he was-also aware that: theMajorCrime: Unitwas
investigating: unsubstantlated inforration bya Lynn ELLINGSEN that Robert William: PICKTON had
been:seen with a body at his fam.

He never became fully involved with the Robert William PICKTON investigation until January 2000 due
to other commitments. Sgt. Darryl POLLOCK was the NCO i/c of the Coquitiam Detachment Major
Crimeé Wnit-and S/Sgt. ZALYS recalls. discussions with Sgt. POLLOCK and the Operations-Officer at
Coquitlam Detachment, then lixsp. Earl MOULTON, about the ELLINGSEN/PICKTON fileand other
priorities.

Cst. Ruth YURKIW:inherited the PICKTON/ELLINGSEN investigation from Cpl. Mike CONNOR who
was the primary investigator until the latter part of August of 1999 wherein he transferred to a Watch
Senior NCO position within Coquitlarn Detachment. Sgt. POLLOCK and Cst. YURKIW informed
S/Sgt. ZALYS of their intentions :on the file. Due to other policing priorities at the:time, the file
'-‘-remamed open:but: delayed in-action, with the-exception of the January 19", 2000:interiewof Rébert:
Wlllam PICKTON,.in the:company -of a female, Gina HOUSTON at Coquitiam Detachment. A
transcribed copy of the PICKTON/HOUSTON interview was previously.referred to in-Appendix *K”.

wuth Insp Earl MOULTON who consmiered the filetobe.a pnonty ZALYS concedes this was a priority
file, however, given-the-other outstanding priorities of the day the PICKTON file would be worked on
when they could as directed and-agreed upon by Insp. MOULTON. The Coquitlam Detachment Major
Crime Unit continued to work on PICKTON as the opportunity arose, however, the file did not receive
the appropriate attention it should have. This was primarily due to a number of incoming serious
priority investigations and other related pressures.

it was-S/Sgt. ZALYS’ opinioen that the Robert William PICKTON investigation should have received
more attention than it did. However, due to a lack of resources, other policing. pricsities and a
difference of opinion on the ELLINGSEN version of events by experienced homicide investigators,
reduced the impetus of this file. S/Sgt. ZALYS does not feel there was ever a formal request made

PREPARED FOR THE PURPOSE OF CURRENT AND ANTICIPATED CIVIL LITIGATION

Page 20 of 27

D:\Redacted\r_Williams' Report.pd



RCMP-004-000711
- RCMP-004-000731

for additional resources to Division Headquarters.

S/Sgt. ZALYS provided us with minutes of the Coquitlam Detachment Serious Crime Unit meeting
dated 2001 APR 11. Notations from these minutes reflect the Robert William-PICKTON: lnvestlgatlon
asbeing that of-a high priority. The proposed action plan was discussed which included preparing a
package to:S/Sgt. ADAM, who was in'the process of reviewing Vancouver Missing Sex Trade Worker
files, condueting additional enquiries as well as a proposal to conduct an undercover operation
targeting Lynn ELLINGSEN. A copy of the minutes of this Unit meeting which also outline various
priorities associated to the-Coquitlam Serious Crime Unit are attached as per Appendix “R”. As well,
S/Sgt. ZALYS' transcribed statement is attached as per Appendix “S”,

13. FILE REVIEWS REPORTED TO RCMP JURISDICTION

Atthie time of this particular review, there were sixty-three known sex trade workers missing primarily
from the downtown east side of Vancouver, B.C.

A: separate bnnder has been provnded with proﬂles of each of the sex trade workers that have been

__lctaon wnhm Brmsh Columb|a See Tabs 1to 9 in the prof ile binder which includes a CPIC
printotit of relative: dataon the reverse side of the phiotograph. o

| Thefollowing files pertaining'to RCMP jurisdiction refers:

1. Angela Mary ARSENAULT (BD: 77-05-20)
RCMP Burnaby File #94-47424

2. Yvonne BOEN (BD: 67-11-30)
RCMP ‘Surrey File #01-27948

3. Heather Gabrielle CHINOOK (BD: 70-11-10)
RCMP-Surrey File #01-61304
Vancouver P.D. took-over file - VPD File #98-261602

4.  WendyLynn:CRAWFORD (BD: 56-04-21)
RCMPCHilliwack-File #95:26961

5. Elaine Phyllis DUMBA (BD: 55-03-12)
RCMP Coquitlam File #98-13017

6. Kellie Richard LITTLE (BD: 69-03-12)
RCMP Agassiz File #97-1351
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7. Jacqueline Maria MURDOCK (BD: 71-01-28)
RCMP Prince George File #87-17557

8. Georgina Faith PAPIN (BD: 64-03-11)
RCMP Mission File #01-02788
Vancouver P.D. took over file - VPD 01-52564

9.  Taressa WILLIAMS (BD: 73-02-14)
REMP White:Rock File #88-06471/98-01321
~Viancouver:P.D. took over file - VPD 89-057168

Each. and every file reported to RCMP junsdlctlon was examined by the review team. From our
observations:and: the material reviewed, all-missing person files received appropriate attentron were
well documénted:and wereinvestigated fully taking into account Divisional Policy on Missing Persons.

14. ANBREA DAWN JOESBURY

The primary objective of this review is related to the statement of claim filed on behalf of Karen
JOESBURY as per Appendix "A”. The plaintiff's solicitor is Denis BERNTSEN of the firm Henley and
Walden of: Sldney. B.C. The statement of claim on behalf of Ms. JOESBURY was filed in the Supreme
Court of B: C on 2002 APR 23.

Andrea Dawn JOESBURY (DOB: 1978-11-06)
FPS: 30059E
: known:address was.-g.wgn as:
466.E. Hastings - Rooséveit'Hotel
Varicouver; B:C.

Sh "'was a known sex trade: worker-who worked the downtown east side of Vancouver. .She:was a
K tgaiser: with needle: marks-on both arms. She was last seen-on: :2001-06-05.at the: Roosévelt
éHoteI and reported missing'tothe Vancouver Police Department-on 2001-08-08. Andrea: J@ESBURY
was p_laced on CPIC as a missing person by the Vancouver Police Department on 2001-06-09.

The:disappearance was investigated by the Vancouver Police Department and is subject to VPD File
01-123592.

“Robert William PICKTON has now been ¢harged with the murder of Andrea Dawn JOESBURY.

The RCMP had no direct involvement in the JOESBURY matter uniil the arrest of PICKTON in
‘February 2002.
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A copy of the Vancouver Police Department Missing Persons Report and applicable CPIC printout has
been placed in the Profile binder under JOESBURY’s name.

15. MARCELLA HELEN FRANCIS CREISON
- STATEMENT OF CLAI

The statement of claim was filed on behalf of Doug CREISON, father of Marcella CREISON, on the
19" of September 2002 in the Supreme Court of B.C. and is attached as per Appendix “T”.

The statement of claim is similar in nature to the JOESBURY claim both of which have been filed by
the solicitor for the plaintiff(s) Denis BERNTSEN.

Marcella Helen Francis CREISON (DOB: 1978-06-02)

FPS: 943031D

NFA :

Known prostitute, IV user, is addicted to heroin and has needle marks

CREISON.was last seen:on 98-1 2-27. Reported missing on 98-01-11. Placed on CPIC by Vancouver
“P.D. 0n.99:01-11, Vanceuver Police Department File 98-008101 refers. -

The RCMP have had-no direct involvement in the CREISON matter. The missing persons
investigation surrounding this particular STW was investigated solely by the Vancouver Police
Department up until the formation of the Missing Women's Task Force.

A copy of the CPIC printout and applicable VPD Missing Person's Report on CREISON can as well
be found-in the Profile binder.

16. MISSING PERSON POLICY
RCMP “E” DIVISION

The RCMP has National Policy in reference to Missing Persons which is contained in Operational
Mariual 1.3.K.3. The National Policy indicates that the law enforcement agency having jurisdiction is
resp_onsuble for-inquiries to locate missing persons. It also states if tequested the RCMP will assist’
other law-enforcement agencies. -A copy of the National Policy is attached as per Appendix “U” (i).

It appears from -our research that the Missing Persons Policy for "E" Division during the PICKTON
investigation ' was implemented on 83-11-08. A copy of this Missing Persons Policy referred to was.
found in "E" Division Green Sheets - Operational Manual under Assistance - 1.3.F.2. Refer to the
attached as per Appendix “U” {ii).

- Atthe time of the report ithas been determined that new Missing Persons Policy for “E" Division was
inthe “draft” stages. A copy of the new draft Policy is attached as per Appendix “U” (iii). Itis hoted
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that this attached draft Policy has not been approved by the responsibie Policy Centre in "E” Division.

It is quite common for the larger municipal detachments in “E” Division to complement the Divisional
Policy on Missing Persons by implementing unit supplements unique to each detachment situation.
A sample has been provided by Surrey Detachment - reference Unit Supplements Surrey Ops. Man.
1.3-R-K.3. A copy of this supplement is provided as per Appendix “U” (iv).

17. CORRESPONDENCE OF INTEREST

Thereview teamiis of the:opinion thata number of documents attached herein would'be beneficial and
of interest to the Department.of Justice Solicitor for their information and examination of a global
nature.

The-related documents -are contained in Appendix “V” and broken down as follows:
V(i) Case-Investigation Log of Det/Cst. M. CHERNOFF

Vancouver Police:Department - Associated to
File VPD - MPRT99-117802

This document is Det/Cst. CHERNOFF’s chronological log from 99-05-25 to 99-09-21. The majority
of the entries relate to missing sex trade workers and his involvement with the RCMP at Coquitlam
relating to Lynn ELLINGSEN and Robert William PICKTON.

Det. CHERNOFF was not interviewed by the review team, however, the log was made available to
review the time line as depicted by Det. CHERNOFF.

Vi) Memora.ndum of»Understandmg (MOU)
ded

This particular document signed by Commanding Officer - “E” Division andthe Chief Constable of
Vancouver Police Department was signed off on June 26", 2001. The document pertainstoa working
agreement between the RCMP and Vancouver Police Department in regard to the missing.sex trade

workers from:the sfreets of Vancouver, B.C.

V(iii) Inter-office Memorandum - February 19", 2002
‘Vancouver Police Department

Referred to inthis appendix is an inter-office memorandum from Inspector C. BEACH, i/c Major Crime
Section, VPD, to D/Chief J. UNGER, who is the Commander of the VPD Investigation Division. The
contents refer to a time line prepared for “Project Evenhanded" and outlines the Vancouver Police
Department.involvement and interaction with the RCMP, relative to Robert William PICKTON and the
timeliness of this project.
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V(iv) ProjectEvenhanded
Family Liaison

Shortly after the arrest of Robert William PICKTON in February of 2002, it became essential to co-
ordinate communication with the families of the missing sex trade workers.

S/Sgt. Paul DARBYSHIRE of the CIU/'E" Division Major Crime Section was appointed to co-ordinate
this effort in conjunction with the Vancouver Police Victim Services and Native Liaison Society.

Since February of 2002, family meetings have been organized where family members attend to
receive information from the lead investigator, member i/c the search site, file co-ordinator, Crown
Counsel, and the coroner. The long term plan is to have four meetings per year.

Refér to Appendix V(iv) for a complete list of family members and contacts pertaining to the missing
sex trade workers.

18. - “E" DIVISION

MISSING PERSON:STATISTICS

Aninteresting document which.provides a‘statistical overview ¢éfmissing persons- both from a.National
and‘Provincial perspective.

As of 2002-09-21:

Missing persons in B.C. - 2228
‘Missing persons in B.C. (female) - 512

Although this fluctuates on a daily basis the total number of missing persons in British Columbia may
be of concern to law enforcement agencies.

Refer to the document attached as per Appendix V(v).
19. REVIEW‘TEAM'GQMMENTS

The review.team made every. reasonable effort to-examine all relevant facts, taking into-.consideration
the vast amount of information: req vired to:undertake this task. Thefocus of surmandate: was to:cover
off the variety of issues to défend civil claims against the RCMP that was brought forward by the
JOESBURY and CREISON families.

-From-a global perspective covering the elemenis outlined atthe beginning of this report, we aré-of the
opinion the RCMP acted appropriately and followed up investigative leads, with respect to Robert
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William PICKTON.

It was difficult for RCMP investigators to corroborate or substantiate the allegations brought forward
by a number of different sources based on the information at the time. There is little doubt that the
RCMP attempted to exhaust all investigative avenues relative to the suspect Robert William
PICKTON. The RCMP ensured that PICKTON was brought to the forefront as a suspect to the
Vancouver Police Department and other local municipal police agencies.

Partnerships were formed and an investigative body was implemented to determine the viability of
PICKTON as asuspect. The working relatlonshlps and the sharing of information was not an issue
with the RCMP and other police agenciés. In fact, all of our interviews conducted with RCMP
members suggested anexcellent and co-operative working relationship between all parties involved.

Throughout this review, it was apparent that the RCMP allocated adequate resources.to the missing

women:investigation(s). Forthie most part, our review centered: around the Coquitlam Detachment
files.involving ind ELLINGSEN in relation to Robert William PICKTON.

Theqnatter referred to in this report was handled and investigated in an
appropriate manner. The desired result would have been a conviction before the courts, however,

circumstances as-outlined dictated otherwise.

The Lynne.Anne ELLINGSEN case is probably the most contentious area of this review. Adequate
resources were committed for the majority of this investigation. However, itis the opinion ofthe review
team ‘that the delay in action on the PICKTON file was caused by many other high profile
investigations as previously outlined. It was unfortunate that Coquitlam Detachment's priority
pressures precluded- this file from receiving continuous unlimited resources and commitment.

The investigation time-line in regard:to the ELLINGSEN.matter.and after the initial interview of Robert
V\ﬁlham PICKTON .0n:2000 JAN 18:appears to diminish: into-2001 pending the formation-and leadmg
up to the Mlssmg ‘Women's Task-Force.

It was the RCMP that was proactive in formulating the review team that led to the Missing Women's
Task Force. One also must take into consideration that the Vancouver Police Department was well
aware of the interest in and the fact that Robert William PICKTON was a suspect in one or more of
the missing sex trade workers from their jurisdiction.

As indicated, several investigative strategies were implemented against Robert William PICKTON
without success. This does net preclude the fact that several other high profile suspects including
PICKTON are operating as serial killers in the Province of British Columbia.

It is easy to sit back and examine the PICKTON file in hindsight. It would be remiss if the review team
did not comment on the fact that all members involved were dedicated and diligent in carrying out a
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proper investigation based on the information at hand.

It is anticipated based on past experiences, that the defendant's legal counsel will take issue with the
delay in action outlined in the ELLINGSEN/PICKTON matter. However, we should not be critical of
the-strides that the investigators took to determine if in fact:Robert William PICKTON was a viable

~ - suspect.

Although this was a complex review, with very unique circumstances, based on our experience and
from the interviews conducted, it is suffice to say nothing would have changed dramatically if those
involved had to do it over again.

We would like to take this opportunity to express our gratitude and appreciation for the co-operation
and assistance that S/Sgt. SIMMILL and myself were afforded by our "E” Division counterparts and
the'members and staff of Project Everihanded. Without their valuable assistance this review could
not'have been completed.

In.addition, should there be a need for any further clarification or investigation that would be helpful
to ourD.0.J. Counsel, we would be pleased to assist in any way we can.

R.J. WHLAAMS, Insp.
“QlC:Major Crimes:North
“K" Division
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